
















































































































































































Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 

Note 

As at March 31, 

2023 

₹ 

As at March 31, 

2022 

₹ 

ASSETS 

Non-Current assets 

Right of use assets 2 7,38,58,739 9,78,65,968 

Financial assets 

Other financial assets 3 56,69,117 56,19,117 

Other tax assets 4 43,38,134 25,07,775 

Deferred tax assets (net) 25,28,968 17,08,760 

Total Non Current assets 8,63,94,958 10,77,01,620 

Current assets 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 5 1,14,40,754 1,12,58,912 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,76,70,358 53,78,371 

Other current assets 7 - 2,83,674 

Total Current assets 3,91,11,112 1,69,20,957 

TOTAL ASSETS 12,55,06,070 12,46,22,577 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

8 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 (a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 9 & 9A 2,43,39,680 52,30,656 

Total Equity 3,43,39,680 1,52,30,656 

Non Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Lease liabilities 29 5,80,71,430 8,15,31,911 

Other financial liabilities - -

Provisions 10 13,61,170 12,80,849 

Total Non Current liabilities 5,94,32,600 3,28,12,760 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Lease liabilities 29 2,43,85,171 2,17,65,341 

Trade and other payables 11 18,82,312 13,11,645 

Other financial liabilities 12 12,85,507 21,24,755 

Other current liabilities 13 40,9 1,486 13,00, 140 

Short term provisions 14 89,314 77,280 

Total Current liabilities 3,17,33,790 2,65,79,161 

Total Liabilities 9,11,66,390 10,93,91,921 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,55,06,070 12,46,22,577 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes forming part of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
SHARP & TANNAN LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration 
No. 127145W/W 100218 
by the hand of 

Raghunath P. Acharya 
Partner 
Membership No. 039920 
Mumbai 
April 29, 2023 
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Fcpar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 
Note 

2022-2023 2021-2022 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 15 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 
II. Other income 16 3,52,908 

I. Total Revenue 8, 74, 22, 618 6,59,40,957 
II. Expenses 

Operating expenses 17 2,00,15,954 1,70,05,250 
Employee benefits expense 18 1,03,19,967 97,73,798 
Finance costs 19 55,40,794 58,22,740 
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 2, 40,15,744 2,22,95,706 
Other expenses 20 22,87,851 17,98,003 

Total Expenses 6,21,80,310 5,66,95,497 

III. Profit Before Tax 2,52,42,308 92,45,460 
IV. Tax expense: 

1. Current Tax 21 (69,17,137) (35,70,883) 

2. Deferred Tax 21 8,20,208 12,28,861 

(60,96,928) (23,42,022) 

V. Net Profit for the year (III + IV) 1,91,45,380 69,03,438 

VI.Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (36,356) (60,096) 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 15,125 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

VII. Total Comprehensive Loss for the period (V + VI) 1,91,09,024 68,58,467 

(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 

VIII. Earnings per equity share 

Basic 
Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

As per our report of even date attached 
SHARP & TAN NAN LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration 
No. 127145W/W100218 
by the hand of 

Raghunath P. Acharya 
Partner 
Membership No. 03992O 
Mumbai 
April 29, 2023 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kusl"al N. Desai 
Chai man 
DIN 00008084 
Mumbai, 
April 29, 

Chaitanya N. Desai 
Director 
DIN : 00008091 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars For the year 
ended March 31, 

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2023 2022 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 2,52,42,308 92,45,460 

Adjustments for 

Amortisation of Right of use assets 2,40,15,744 2,22,95,706 

Finance costs 55,40,794 58,22,740 

Movement in working capital 

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables 51,833 (1,19,50,338) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 5,70,667 (1,93,583) 

(Decrease)/ Increase in other liabilities 33,08,237 26,11,160 

Tax (paid)! refund (87,47,496) (56,99,419) 

Net cash generated by / (used in) operating activities 4,99,82,087 2,21,31,726 

Cash flow from investing activities 

Net cash generated by! (used in) investing activities - -

Cash flow from financing activities 

Payment of Lease liabilities (2,76,90, 100) (2,41,68,624) 

Proceeds from allotment of shares - -
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities (2,76,90,100) (2,41,68,624) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,22,91,987 (20,36,898) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 53,78,371 74,15,269 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,76,70,358 53,78,371 

Notes: 

1) Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. 

As per our report of even date attached 
SHARP & TANNAN LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration 
No. 127145W/W100218 
by the hand of 

Raghunath P. Acharya Ku al N. Desa> Chaitanya N. Desai 
Partner Ch irman Director 
Membership No. 039920 DIN : 00008084 DIN : 00008091 
Mumbai Mumbai, 
April 29, 2023 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

1. General information 
The Company was incorporated as Wholly owned Subsidiary of Apar Industries Limited on 2nd March, 2020 to carry out the 
business of distribution and logistics services. Apar Industries Limited holds 100% of the Equity Share Capital of the 
Company i.e. 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The registered office of the company is situated at at Apar House, 
Building no 5, Corporate Park, Sion-Trombay Road, Chembur, Mumbai - 400071, Maharashtra. 
These financial statements are approved for issue by Board of Directors on 29th April, 2023 

Note: 1 — Significant Accounting Policies 
2. Basis of accounting 

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
to comply with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act"), and the relevant provisions of the 2013 Act (to the 
extent notified) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued 
thereafter. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to 
an existing Ind AS requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use. 

3. Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts 
have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated. 

4. Key estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some items, 
which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (i) balance sheet and (ii) statement of profit and loss. 
The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for: 

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets 
Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where 
the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the 
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support. 

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations 

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of 
the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. 

Recognition of deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax 
credits could be utilized. 

Recognition and measurement of other provisions 
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of 
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a 
future date may therefore vary from the amount included in other provisions. 

Fair value of financial instruments 
Derivatives and investments in mutual funds are carried at fair value. Derivatives includes Foreign Currency Forward 
Contracts, Commodity futures contracts and Interest Rate Swaps. Fair value of Foreign Currency Forward Contracts and 
commodity future contracts are determined using the fair value reports provided by merchant bankers and LME brokers 
respectively. Fair value of Interest Rate Swaps are determined with respect to current market rate of interest. 

5 Measurement of fair values 
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments. 
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management 
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes 
or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third 

support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value 
ch such valuations should be classified. 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows. 
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Leve/2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred. 

6 Significant accounting policies followed by the company 

A. Foreign currency 

i. Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of companies at the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange 
rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences 
are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign 
currency are not translated. 
Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss. 

B. Revenue Recognition 

i. Revenue from contract with customers for sale of goods and provision of services 

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with the customers based on five step model defined in Ind AS 115. The 
Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if any of the conditions given in Ind AS 115 
satisfies; else revenue is recognized at point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied. 
When the Company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a contract 
based asset on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a 
customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognized this gives rise to a contract liability. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates. Revenues are recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue & costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably. 
a. Performance ObligationThe Company derives its revenue from rendering services in Distribution and Logistics.The 
Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance obligation are satisfied 
over time or at a point in time in order to determine the appropriate method for recognizing of revenue. The Company has 
assessed that based on the contracts entered into with the customers and the provisions of relevant laws and regulations, the 
Company recognizes the revenue over time only if it satisfies the criteria given in Ind AS 115. Where the criteria as per Ind 
AS 115 are not met, revenue is recognized at a point in time. 
The Company satisfies its performance obligation when the control over the goods is transferred to the customer or benefits 
of the services being provided is received and consumed by the customer. 
In cases where the Company determines that performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognized 
when the control over the goods is transferred to the customer or benefits of the services being provided is received and 
consumed by the customer. The Company considers that the customer has obtained the control of promised goods or 
services; when the goods have been dispatched/delivered to the destination as per terms of the contract or services has 
been provided and consumed by the customer as per agreed terms and the Company has unconditional right to 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

In cases where the Company determines that performance obligation is satisfied over time, then revenue is recognised when 
the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction (Input 
Method). The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 
1. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
2. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; 
3. The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and 
4. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
Stage of completion is determined by the proportion of actual costs incurred to-date, to the estimated total costs of the 
transaction. 
The Company considers that the use of the input method, which requires revenue recognition on the basis of the company's 
efforts to the satisfaction of performance obligation, provides the best reference of revenue actually earned. In applying the 
input method, the Company estimates the efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation. In addition to the 
cost of meeting contractual obligation to the customers, these estimates mainly include; 
a. For service contracts, the time elapsed 
b. Transaction Price 
The Company is required to determine the transaction price in respect of each of its contracts with customers. 
Contract with customers for sale of goods or services are either on a fixed price or on variable price basis. 
For allocating the transaction price, the Company measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of 
contract at its relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best 
evidence of its standalone selling price. In making judgment about the standalone selling price, the Company also assesses 

the impact of any variable consideration in the contract, due to discounts or penalties, the existence of any significant 
financing component and any non-cash consideration in the contract. 
In determining the impact of variable consideration if any, the Company uses the "most likely amount" method as per Ind AS 

115 whereby the transaction price is determined by reference to the single most likely amount in a range of possible 
consideration amounts. 
c. Contract Modification 
Any changes in the scope or price of the contracts are accounted only when the same is approved. The accounting of 

modification calls for assessment of changes in the scope or prices. If the goods or services added are not of distinct nature 
then modification are accounted on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted prospectively, 

either as a separate contract, if additional goods or services are priced at the standalone selling prices or as a termination of 

the existing contract and creation of new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

ii. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective interest rate 

applicable. 

iii. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established. 

C. Employee benefits 
i. Short term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 

expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 

service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably 

ii. Defined contribution plans 

Provident Fund Scheme 
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund directly to the Government under the 

Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. 

• Superannuation Scheme 
The Company makes specified contributions to the superannuation fund administered by the Company and the return on 

investments is adequate to cover the commitments under the scheme. The Company's contribution paid/payable under the 

scheme is recognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the 

related service. 
iii. Defined benefit plans 

The following post — employment benefit plans are covered under the defined benefit plans: 

The Compa~~sm obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and 
deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding 
requirements. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit/liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, if any (excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net 
interest expense/(income) on the net defined liability/(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure 
the net defined liability/(asset), to the net defined liability/(asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any 
changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to 
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and 
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 
iv. Other long-term employee benefits 

Long-term Compensated Absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses comprising of experience adjustments and the effects of 
changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Finance income and finance costs 
The Company's finance income and finance costs include: 

interest income; 
interest expense; 
the net gain or loss on financial assets at FVTPL 
exchange differences arising from monetary assets and liabilities 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

Share issue expenses are written off in the year in which it is incurred. 

E. Income Tax 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 
a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 

i. Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company: 

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and 
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

ii. Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; 
• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the Company is able to 
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 

• and 
rary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 

realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company 

expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and 

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the 

same taxable entity. 

Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period 

are not recognised. Deferred tax assets / liabilities in respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday 

period but reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised. 

F. Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 

losses. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: 

a) its purchase price, including import duties and non.refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 

rebates. 

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management. 

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the 

obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a 

particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period. 

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or loss. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted and 

depreciated for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure 

will flow to the Company. 

iii. Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided, pro rata to the period of use, based on useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013 except in the case where the estimated useful life based on management experience and technical evaluation differs. 

Depreciation is charged on the Straight Line or the Written Down Value based on the method consistently followed by the 

Company. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

Capital expenditure in respect of which ownership does not vest with the Company is amortized over a period of five years. 

Leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. 

ible Assets 
which are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost 

y accumulated impairment losses. 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as 

incurred. 

Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line 

method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss. 

f Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 

period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its 

intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

I. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange 

forward contracts, Commodity future Contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the 

host contract. 

Financial instruments also covers contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another 

financial instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if the contracts were financial instruments, with the exception 

of contracts that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item 

in accordance with the entity's expected purchase, sale or usage requirements. 

J. Financial assets 

Classification 

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 

comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets 

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 

profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 

assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 

from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at 

FVTPL. 

he Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as_: 

~R 41 r, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistenc ~(t0 red to as 'accounting mismatch'). ^~ 

*~ MUMBAI 

D ACCO 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and 

loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily 

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 

Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the 

Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis 

that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and 

bank balance. 

b) Trade receivables - The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit 

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 

recognition. Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, 

security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations about future cash flows. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

Classification 

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at 

fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at 

fair value. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

directly attributable and incremental transaction cost. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, 

_financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

tee contracts 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a 
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less 
cumulative amortisation. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 

and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised as finance cost. A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the 
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is 

established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will 

probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of 

which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made. 

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is 
probable. 

K. Leases 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 

in exchange for consideration. 
Company as a lessee 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the 

contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price 

of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease 

commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial 

measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 

incentives received. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated 

impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets are depreciated 

using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. 

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. 

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 

recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement 

date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with 

reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate 

specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed 

payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is 

reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the 

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 

amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and 

the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-subs ante=fviced -. 

The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modifi ion;as arm.
ght-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modifiga4ion..'Where the

•n 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease 
liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to; 

1. Short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less, and 
2. Leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. 

The lease payments associated with above 2 types of leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 

L. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication 
of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is 
recognised for such excess amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting 
the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. 
When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting 
periods which no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued 
assets, such reversal is not recognised. 

M. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company cash management. 

N. Earnings per share 

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per share, the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Statement of changes in equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period Balance 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of Shares ₹ No. of Shares ₹ 

10,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 

10,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 
- - - -

10,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,000 1,00,00,000 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
(b) Other equity 

Opening Balance 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the year 
Total comprehensive loss for the year 
Transactions with the owners of the Company 

Retained 
earnings - 
Surplus 

Other items of 
OCI 

Total Retained 
earnings - 
Surplus 

Other items of 
OCI 

Total 

52,75,627 (44,971) 52,30,656 (16,27,811) - (16,27,811) 

1,91,45,380 
- (36,356) 

1,91,45,380 
(36,356) 

69,03,438 
- 

- 
(44,971) 

69,03,438 
(44,971) 

1,91,45,380 (36,356) 1,91,09,024 69,03,438 (44,971) 68,58,467 

- - - -
Closing Balance 2,44,21,007 (81,327) 2,43,39,680 52,75,627 (44,971) 52,30,656 

As per our report of even date attached 
SHARP & TANNAN LIP For and 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration 
No. 127145W/W100218 
by the hand of 

Raghunath P. Ach rya Kus 
Partner Cha 
Membership No. 039920 DIN 
Mumbai Mumbai, 
April 29, 2023 April 

on behalf 

,al N. Desé 
rman 
: 00008084 

29, 2023 

of the Board of Directors 

Chaitanya N. Desai 
Director 
DIN : 00008091 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 2: Right of Use Assets 

Amount in ₹ 

Gross block Depreciation Net block 
As at 

01-04-2022 
Additions Deductions 

As at 
31.03-2023 

Upto 
31-03-2022 

for the year Adjustments 
Upto 

31-03-2023 
As at 

31-03-2023 
As at 

31-03-2022 

Righ of use Assets 12,32,95,988 3,13,225 (3,87,367) 12,32,21,846 2,54,30,020 2,40,15,744 (82,657) 4,93,63,107 7,38,58,739 9,78,65,968 

Grand Total 12,32,95,988 3,13,225 (3,87,367) 12,32,21,846 2,54,30,020 2,40,15,744 (82,657) 4,93,63,107 7,38,58,739 9,78,65,968 

Gross block Depreciation Net block 
As at 

01-04-2021 
Additions Deductions 

As at 
31-03-2022 

Upto 
31-03-2021 

For the year Adjustments 
Upto 

31-03-2022 
As at 

31.03-2022 
As at 

31-03-2021 

Righ of use Assets 6,26,86,286 6,06,09,702 12,32,95,988 31,34,314 2,22,95,706 2,54,30,020 9,78,65,968 5,95,51,972 

Grand Total 6,26,86,286 6,06,09,702 - 12,32,95,988 31,34,314 2,22,95,706 - 2,54,30,020 9,78,65,968 5,95,51,972 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 3 Other Finacial Assets - Non Current 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Unsecured, considered good 

Security deposits 56,69,117 56,19,117 

56,69,117 56,19,117 

Note 4 Other Tax Assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Advance Income tax (net of Provision) 43,38,134 25,07,775 

43,38,134 25,07,775 

Note 5 Trade Receivable 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Un-Secured 
Considered good (refer notes below) 1,14,40,754 1,12,58,912 

1,14,40,754 1,12,58,912 

Note I - Overdue amount Rs. Nil for current year (Rs. Nil for previous year) 

Note II - Due from holding company 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Due from Holding Company - Apar Industries Limited 

Due from other parties - Minda corp 
96,72,858 

17,67,896 

1,12, 58,912 

As at March 31, 2023 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 
More than 3 

years 
i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered 
good 1,14,40,754 - - - - 1,14,40,754 
ii) Undisputed trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
iii) Undisputed trade receivables - Credit Impaired 

iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good 

v) Disputed trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
vi) Disputed trade receivables - Credit Impaired 

Total 1,14,40,754 - - - - 1,14,40,754 

As at March 31, 2022 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 
More than 3 

years 
i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered 
good 1,12,58,912 - - - - 1,12,58,912 
ii) Undisputed trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
iii) Undisputed trade receivables - Credit Impairel 

iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good 

v) Disputed trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
vi) Disputed trade receivables - Credit Impaired 

Total 1,12,58,912 - - - - 1,12,58,912 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 

Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 6 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

On current accounts 2,76,70,358 53,78,371 
Cash on hand - -
Cheques on hand - -

2,76,70,358 53,78,371 

Note 7 - Other Current Assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Balances with statutory/government authorities - 2,83,674 

- 2,83,674 

a 

b 

c 

d 

Note 8 Equity share capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Authorised: 

10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 
(previous year 10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each) 

TOTAL 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 
Issued 

10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 
(previous year 10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each) 

TOTAL 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 
Subscribed and Paid up 

10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 
(previous year 10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each) 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

1, 00, 00, 000 1, 00, 00, 000 

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the 
year: 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,00,000 10,00,000 
Issued during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000 10,00,000 

e Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. 

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in 
the company is set out below: 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

No of shares % No of shares % 
Apar Industries Limited 9,99,999 100% 9,99,999 100% 

g Shares Reserved for issue under options 
There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment. 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 9 Other Equity 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Retained earnings - Surplus / (Deficit) 

As per Last Balance Sheet 52,75,627 (16,27,811) 
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 1,91,45,380 69,03,438 
Closing Balance 2,44,21,007 52,75,627 

Note 9A Other Reserve 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Other items of Other comprehensive income (81,327) (44,971) 
(81,327) (44,971) 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

OCI 
As per Last Balance Sheet 
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 
Closing Balance 

(81,327) (44,971) 
(81,327) (44,971) 

Nature and purpose of reserves 
i. General reserve 

General reserve forms part of the retained earnings and is permitted to be distributed to shareholders as part of 
dividend. 

Note 10 Long term provisions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Provision for leave benefits (Refer Note 23) 7,27,583 5,93,595 
Provision for gratuity- In respect of other employees (Refer Note 23) 6,33,587 6,87,254 

13,61,170 12,80,849 

Note 11 Trade and other payables 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -

Due to other than micro and small and medium enterprises (refer notes below) 18,82,312 13,11,645 
Total 18,82,312 13,11,645 
Note I - Overdue amount Rs. Nil for current year (Rs. Nil for previous year) 

Note II - There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 
days as at the balance sheet date. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the 
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

As at March 31, 2023 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 

More than 3 
years Total 

i) MSME - - - - - 
ii) Others 18,82,312 - - - 18,82,312 
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 
iii) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

Total 18,82,312 - - - 18,82,312 

As at March 31, 2022 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 
year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 

More than 3 
years Total 

i) MSME - - - - - 
ii) Others 13,11,645 - - - 13,11,645 
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

iii) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

Total 13,11,645 - - - 13,11,645 
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Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 12 Other financial liabilities 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Short term advances (refer note below) 12,85,507 21,24,755 

Total 12,85,507 21,24,755 

Note - Payable to Holding Company 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Short term advance from Apar Industries Limited 12,85,507 21,24,755 

Note 13 Other current liabilities 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Statutory dues towards government 28,39,955 4,30,678 
Provision for other expenses 12,51,531 8,69,462 
Total 40,91,486 13,00,140 

Note 14 Provisions - current 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Provision for leave benefits (Refer Note 23) 73,532 59,304 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 23) 15,782 17,976 

Total 89,314 77,280 

Note 15 Revenue from Operations FY2023 FY2022 

Service Charges recovered 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 

Total 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 

Disclosure under IND AS 115 

FY2023 FY2022 
Revenue from contracts with customer! ₹ ₹ 

Revenue recognised at point in time 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 

Sales by performance obligation FY2023 FY2022 

Upon providing of services 8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 
8,74,22,618 6,55,88,049 

iii Contract balances 

Unbilled revenue 

FY2023 FY2022 

Opening Balance as at April 1 1,12,58,912 2,18,954 
Add: Addition during the year 1,14,40,753 1,12,58,912 

2, 2 6, 99, 665 1,14, 77, 866 
Less: Trasferred to receivable 1,12,58,912 2,18,954 
Closing balance 1,14,40,753 1,12,58,912 

iv Remaining performance obligations 

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of 
the end of the reporting period are having performance obligations, which are a part of the contracts that has an original expected 
duration of one year or Iess.Hence, the company has applied practical expedient as per para 121 of the Ind As 115 in regards to remaining 
performance obligations. 
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Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 16 Other Income FY2023 FY2022 

Excess Provision for expenses written back - 3,52,908 

Total - 3,52,908 

Note 17 Operatinge expenses FY2023 FY2022 

Loading & unloading charges 1,51,56,357 1,36,37,244 

Electricity and water charges 19,04,507 12,73,618 
Other operating charges 29,55,090 20,94,388 

Total 2,00,15,954 1,70,05,250 

Note 18 Employee benefit expenses FY2023 FY2022 

Salaries, wages and bonus 91,55,863 86,15,784 

Contribution to provident and other funds 7,78,214 4,17,388 

Gratuity Expenses 2,18,609 6,45,134 

Workmen and staff welfare expenses 1,67,281 95,492 

Total 1,03,19,967 97,73,798 

Note 19 Finance costs FY2023 FY2022 

Interest on lease contracts 55,40,794 58,22,740 

Total 55,40,794 58,22,740 
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Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 20 Other expenses FY2023 FY2022 

Bank charges 1,10,810 10,793 
Publicity and advertisement - 1,76,680 

Rates and taxes 62,900 17,075 
Conveyance 1,21,551 23,967 

Brokerage 8,500 1,80,000 
Printing and stationery 3,16,601 2,55,367 

Books, periodicals and subscription - 7,036 

Vehicle running expenses 52,853 67,765 

Security charges 12,36,605 8,98,621 

Miscellaneous administrative expenses 1,21,531 32,699 
Legal and professional fees 81,500 (47,000) 

Auditor Remuneration 1,75,000 1,75,000 

22,87,851 17,98,003 

Auditors' remuneration details FY2023 FY2022 

Auditor remuneration for 

Audit 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Limited review 75,000 75,000 

Reimbursement of expenses - - 

1,75,000 1,75,000 

Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure* 

FY2023 

₹ 

FY2022 

₹ 

i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - -
ii) Amount spent during the year (in cash) - -

(a) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

(b) On purposes other than (i) above (refer note below) - -

iii) Details of contribution made to related parties - -

iv) Provision made for corporate social responsibility expenditure - -

v) Shortfall at the end of the year - -

vi) Total previous year shortfall - -

vii) Reason for shortfall - -
viii) Nature of CSR activities - - 

* The Company is not falling under the eligibility criteria given for spending of corporate social responsibility expenditure as given under the 

Companies Act, 2013 

Note 21 Tax expense FY2023 FY2022 

Current tax (69,17,137) (35,70,883) 

Deferred tax 8,20,208 12,28,861 

Total (60,96,928) (23,42,022) 

SAP•----'~' N~.~~V 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 22 Earnings per share 
A. Basic earnings per share 
The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted-average 
i. Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the Company 
Income/(Expense) recognized in Securities premium/other reserves 

1,91,45,380 69,03,438 

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to ordinary shareholders 1,91,45,380 69,03,438 

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Issued ordinary shares - Issued in FY 2020 
Issued ordinary shares. Issued on Feb 22, 2021 

10,00,000 
-

10,00,000 

Weighted average number of shares at March 31 10,00,000 10,00,000 

Basic EPS (₹) 

Face value per Share (₹) 

19.15 
10.00 

B. Diluted earnings per share 
There are no dilutive instruments as at 31/03/2023 and 31/03/2022, hence diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per share. 

6.90 
10.00 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 23 Employee benefits 

(i) Defined Contribution Plans: 

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and other retirement benefits to a defined contribution retirement benefit 
plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the 
retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. 

The Company recognised ₹ 218609 (previous year ₹ 654135) for other retirement benefit contributions in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The Company recognised ₹ 778214(previous year ₹ 417388) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan: 
The Employees' Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based 
on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of 
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit seperately to build up the final obligation. 

The obligation for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity. The Company provides for leave encashment liabiltiy 
as per the acturial valuation carried out as at March 31, 2023. The Company has recognised ₹ 801115 (previous year ₹ 652900) for leave 
encashment liability in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out 
as at March 31, 2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, 
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 
recognised in the Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability 

Particulars 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Gratuity Gratuity 
Table showing change in benefit obligation 
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 
a) Included in statement of profit and loss 

7,05,230 

Current service cost 1,66,775 78,277 
Interest cost 51,834 38,811 
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 5,28,046 

2,18, 609 6,45,134 



Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 23 Employee benefits 
b) Included in OCI 

Re-measurement or Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from: 

Demographic assumptions 
Financial assumptions 
Experience adjustment 

c) Other 
Benefits paid 
Defined Benefit obligation at end of the year 

(14,323) 
50,679 60,096 
36,356 60,096 

(3,10,826) 
6,49,369 7,05,230 

Table showing change in Fair Value of Plan Assets March 31, 2023 

Gratuity 

March 31, 2022 

Gratuity 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 
Employer Contribution 
Benefit paid 
Fair value of plan assets at year end 
Actual return on plan assets 
Expected contribution for next year 

Defined benefit obligations 

i) Actuarial assumptions 
In arriving at the valuation for gratuity & leave benefit following assumptions were used: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Mortality Table (LIC) 
Retirement Age 
Employee Turnover rate 

Discount Rate 
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 

Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality 
2012-14(Urban) 

60 
2.00% 
7.50% 

NA 
5.80% 

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
2012-14(Urban) 

60 
2.00% 
7.35% 

NA 
5.80% 



Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 23 Employee benefits 
ii. Sensitivity analysis 
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, 
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below. 

March 31, 2023 
Increase Decrease 

March 31, 2022 
Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1% movement) (85,636) 1,03,928 (85,342.00) 1,01,860.00 
Future salary growth (1% movement) 1,04, 680 (87,634) 1,02,433.00 (87,240.00) 
Employee Turnover (1% movement) 13,184 (15,736) 13,717.00 (15,710.00) 

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different 
count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of 
the sensitivity analysis. 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 
recognised in the Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 

Gratuity 

March 31, 2022 

Gratuity 
Fair value of plan assets 
Present value of obligation 
Amount recognised in balance sheet 

6,49,369.00 7,05,230.00 
6,49,369.00 7,05,230.00 

Expense recognised during the year March 31, 2023 

Gratuity 

March 31, 2022 

Gratuity 
Included in statement of profit and Loss 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 

Net actuarial (gain) / loss 
Return on plan assets,excluding acturial gain or loss 
Included in OCI 
Re-measurement or Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from: 

Demographic assumptions 
Financial assumptions 
Experience adjustment 

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 
Net Cost 

1,66,775 
51,834 

(14,323) 
36,356 

78,277 
38,811 

60,096 

2,40,642 1, 77,184 



Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 23 Employee benefits 

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Gratuity Gratuity 

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reportin€ 
1st following year 15,782 17,976 
2nd following year 16,465 20,017 
3rd following year 17,189 20,907 
4th following year 18,211 21,851 
5th following year 21,978 23,090 
From 6 to 10 years 1, 25,602 1,32,604 
From it years and above 21,44,074 19,68,201 

Category of Plan Assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Insurance Funds 
Mutual Funds 
Cash And Cash Equivalents 
Fair value of plan assets 



Apar Distribution & logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 
Note 24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management Disclosure 

A. Accounting classification and lair values 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include the fair value information for 

financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

t 

Carrying amount Fair value 
March 31, 2023 Note No. Fair value- 

hedging 
instruments FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost Total 

level 1- level 2- Level 3 -

Quoted price Significant Significant 

in active observable unobservable 

markets inputs inputs 

Total

Financial assets 

Trade Receivables 
Current 5 1,14,40,754 1,14,40,754 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 2,76,70,358 2,76,70,358 
Other financial assets 

• Non-current 3 56,69,117 56,69,117 

Total financial assets - 4,47,80,229 4,47,80,129 - 

Financial liabilities 

lease habilues 
. Non-current 29 5,80,71,430 5,80,71,430 

Current 29 2,43,85,171 2,43,85,171 
Other financial liabilities 

'Non-current 0 -
Current 12 12,85,507 12,85,507 

Trade Payables 11 18.82,312 18.82.312 

Total financial liabilities - 8,56,24,420 8,56,24,420 - - 

t 

Notes Carrying amount Fair value 

March 31, 2022 Fair value-
hedging FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost 

instruments 

Total level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total 

Financial assets 

Trade Recervables 

Current 5 1,12,58,912 1,12,58,912 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 53,78,371 53,78,371 
Other financral assets 

-Non-current 3 56,19,117 56,19,117 

• Current 

Total financial assets - 2,22,56,400 2,22,56,400 - 

Financial liabilities 

leases 
- Non-current 29 8,15,31,911 8,15,31,911 

Current 29 2,17,65,341 2,17,65,341 
Other financial liabilities 

- Non-current 0 - - 
•Current 12 21,24,755 21,24,755 

Trade Payables 11 13,11,645 13,11,645 

Total financial liabilities - - 10,67,33,652 10,67,33,652 



Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 21123 
Note 24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management Disclosure 
B. Measurement of fair values 

Valuation techniques and significant observable snouts 

The fair value for financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables etc have not been disclosed because the carrrying values approximate the fair value. 

Refer note 1.5 for different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. 

C. Financial risk management 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 
• Credit risk; 

Liquidity risk ; and 
• Market risk 

Risk management framework 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management 

Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, 

aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understantf their roles and obligations. 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 25 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they 
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. 

Maturity profile of financial liabilities 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated 
interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 

Contractual cash flows ₹ crore 
March 31, 2023 Carrying 

amount 
Total 

1 year or less 1-2 years 3-5 years 
More than 

5 years 
Non-derivative financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Lease liabiliies 

March 31, 2022 

18,82,312 18,82,312 18,82,312 
12,85, 507 12,85,507 12,85,507 

8,24,56,601 8,24,56,601 2,43,85,171 2,73,27,003 3,07,44,428 

Contractual cash flows ₹ crore 
Carrying 
amount 

Total 
1 year or less 1-2 years 3-5 years 

More than 
5 years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Lease liabiliies 

13,11,645 13,11,645 13,11,645 
21,24,755 21,24,755 21,24,755 

10,32,97,252 10,32,97,252 2,17,65,341 2,44,37,214 5,70,94,697 

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to the financial liabilities w 

out before contractual maturity. 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 26 Related party relationships, transactions and balances 
A. List of Related Parties 
a). Holding Company - Apar Industries Limited 

B. Related Party Transactions 
Sr No. Transactions 

1 Sale of services 
2 Purchase of services 
3 Reimbursement of Expenses 
4 Subscription to issue of Equity shares 
5 Balance outstanding as on 

a) Receivable from holding company for supply of services 
b) Payable to holding company for supply of services 
c) Short term advances payable 

Note 27 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 
(a) Major components of tax expense/(income): 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
a. Profit and Loss section: 
(i) Current tax 
Current tax expense for the year 

(ii) Deferred Tax: 

(69,17,137) (35,70,883) 

Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,20,208 12,28,861 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 

b. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section: 

(60,96,929) (23,42,022) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) - 15,125 

Income tax expenses reported in the other comprehensive income (i) - 15,125 

March 31, March 31, 2022 
2023 

8,59,24,402 6,55,88,049 

36,21,891 

96, 72,858 1,12,58,912 

12,85,507 21,24,755 

(b) Reconciliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate: 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Profit before tax (a) 
Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 (b) 
Tax on accounting profit (c)=(a)'(b) 
Add: Items disallowed under lax laws (d) 
Share capital expenses 
Lease related expenses 
Employee benefits provision 
Others 

2,52,42,308 
25.168% 

(63,52,984) 

- 
2,56,056 

92,45,460 
25.168% 

(23,26,897) 

(15,125) 
-
-

Tax income recognised during the year (e) _ (c) + (d) (60,96,928) (23,42,022) 
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Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 28 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 
Movement in deferred tax balances 
Particulars Net balance 

April 1, 2022 

Recognised in 

profit or 

Z 

Recognised 

in OCI 

Net Deferred tax Asset / (Liability) 

Lease Expenses 

Taxable Loss 

Employee benefit provisions 

Net tax assets (liabilities) 

17,08,760 7,96,965 25,05,725 25,05,725 

23,244 23,244 23,244 

17,08,760 7,96,965 23,244 25,28,969 25,28,969 

Particulars Net balance 

April 1, 2022 

Recognised in 

profit or loss 

Recognised 

in OCI 

Y 

Net Deferred tax Asset / (Liability) 

Lease Expenses 

Taxable Loss 

Employee benefit provisions 

Net tax assets (liabilities) 

3,72,855 9,94,091 13,66,946 13,66,946 
91,919 (91,919) -

3, 26, 689 15,125 3,41,814 3,41,814 

4,64,774 12,28,860 15,124 17,08,759 17,08,760 

Note 29 Disclosure pursuant to Ind As 116 - Leases 

Particulars March 31, 2023 

Z 

March 31, 2022 

t 
Interest expenses on Lease liabilities 55,40,794 58,22,740 
Expenses relating to Short term leases & low value assets leases - -

Lease Liability Non current 5,80,71,430 8,15,31,911 
Lease Liability Current 2,43,85,171 2,17,65,341 
Total cash outflows of lease payments 2,76,90,100 2,41,68,624 

The Company has applied paragraph 6 of IND AS 116; for accounting of Short term leases having lease period of less than 12 months & leases for which the 

underlying asset if of low value. 

Lease payments associated with these leases are accounted either on straight line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis which is more 

representative of the lease payment pattern. 

Note 30 Segment Reporting 

The company has only one reportable primary segment - provision of logistic and distribution related services. 

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its primary segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 

and performance assessment. 

Note 31 Contingent liabilities and Commitments 
There was no contingent liabilties or capital commitments outstanding as on the reporting date. 

Note 32 Foreseeable Losses 

The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

Note 33 Amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Note 34 Additional disclosure 
Ii) The Cornpany does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year. 

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that 
the Intermediary shall. 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vi) Tire Company have not received any fund from any persons) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise) that the company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
Ib) provide any guarantee, security or tire like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

viilThe Company has no such transaction which is not recorded m the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

viir)Tite Company has not borrowed any funds from Banks or financial institutions during the reporting period 



Apar Distribution & Logistics Private Limited 
Notes To The Financial Statement as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 

Note 35 Ratios 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Variances% Remarks Ratio Methodology 

Current Ratio 1.23 0.64 93.6% NA Current Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Debt -Equity Ratio 
NA NA - NA Long Term borrowing+ short term 

borrowing 
Total equity 

Debt service coverage ratio 
NA NA - NA Interest on borrowings 

Long term borrowing + short term 
borrowing 

Return on Equity ratio 77% 58% 32.1% Profit after tax 
Total average equity 

Inventory Turnover ratio 

NA NA - NA Cost of material consumed + 
changes in inventories+purchase of 

stock in trade 

Average Inventory 

Trade receivable turnover ratio 

1.32 70.68 -98.1% The company has received 

customers dues in shorter credit 

period. Further the Company has 

started to generate revenue by 

stabilising its operation during 

reporting period. 

Revenue from operations 
Average Trade receivables 

Trade payable turnover ratio 
NA NA - NA Total purchases 

Average Trade payables 

Net capital turnover ratio 
(76.66) (9.00) 751.7% The operations of the company 

was stabilised during the 

FY2022. 

Revenue from operations 
Average Working Capital 

Net profit margin 
22% 10% 109.2% The operations of the company 

was stabilised during the 

FY2022. 

Profit after tax 5100
Total Income 

Return on Capital employed 

124% 1.08 15.2% The operations of the company 

was stabilised during the 

FY2022. 

Profit before interest and tax X 100 
Total equity+ Long Term Borrowings 

Return on investment NA NA - NA 

Note 36 

Figures for previous periods / year have been regrouped, wherever necessary. 
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$!APAR
Tomorrow's solutions today 

PETROLEUM SPECIALITIES FZE 

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of 
Petroleum Specialities FZE will be held on Tuesday, May 23, 2023 at 4.00 P.M. at the 
Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 1C-02D1, Ham riyah Free Zone, Sharjah, United Arab 
Emirates to transact the following business 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements comprising Statement of 
Financial Position (Balance Sheet) as at March 31, 2023, Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(Profit & Loss Account) for the financial year ended on that date together with Reports of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration. 

Registered Office: 
Plot No. 1C-02D1, 
Ham riyah Free Zone, 
Sharjah, 
United Arab Emirates 

Place : Sharjah, UAE 
Date : April 22, 2023 

By Order • f the Board 

Kush : I N. De 
i 

(C airman) 

Hamriyah Free Zone, Sharjah, uAE, P.O. BOX: 42180, Landline: +97165096444, Fax: +97165269477 Website: www.apar.com

Wholly owned subsidiary of APAR Industries Ltd. 
ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001: 2015 & ISO 45001:2018 



















































Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Particulars Note No.
 As at

31st March, 2023

A. ASSETS
I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2(a) 6.28
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2(b) 318.71

Income tax assets (net)(c) Income tax assets (net) 0.38
Income tax assets (net)(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 3 0.05

(e) Other non-current assets 4 68.98
394.40

II Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.11
(ii) Other balances with banks 6 0.94
(iii) Other financial assets 7 0.01

(b) Other current assets 8 0.37
1.43

Total 395.83

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity

(a) Equity share capital 9 1.00
(b) Other equity 10 144.74

145.74

II Non-Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)   Long-term borrowings 11 237.03
237.03

II Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)   Short-term borrowings 12 8.69
(ii)   Trade payables 13

0.03

0.02
(iii)   Other current financial liabilities 14 4.16

(b) Other current liabilities 15 0.16
13.06

Total                              395.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. (Refer Note 1 to 28)

In terms of our report attached of even date
For Dipesh Ruparelia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 152808W CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Dipesh Kirit Ruparelia Pramod Deore Viren Shah
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 190806 DIN: 08599306 DIN: 09588566
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023
UDIN: 23190806BGVUNE8944

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
        micro and small enterprises



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Particulars Note No.
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
A. Income:
(a) Revenue from operations -

Total income -

B. Expenses:
(a) Other expenses 16 0.27

Total expenses 0.27

C. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (A - B) (0.27)
D. Finance costs 17 -
E. Depreciation and amortisation expense -
F. Loss before tax (C - D - E) (0.27)

G. Tax expense:
Current tax -
Deferred tax credit (0.05)
Total tax expense / (credit) (0.05)

H. Loss after tax (F - G) (0.22)

I Total comprehensive income for the period (0.22)

Earnings per equity share
 - basic and diluted 18                             (2.64)
(Face value of Rs. 10/-)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. (Refer Note 1 to 28)

In terms of our report attached of even date
For Dipesh Ruparelia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 152808W CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Dipesh Kirit Ruparelia Pramod Deore Viren Shah
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 190806 DIN: 08599306 DIN: 09588566
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023
UDIN: 23190806BGVUNE8944

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax (0.27)
Finance cost -

Operating profit before working capital changes (0.27)
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories
Other assets (0.08)

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 0.05
Other current liabilities 0.16

    Cash generated from operations (0.14)
    Income taxes paid (0.38)
Net cash used in from operating activities (A) (0.52)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (389.81)
Deposit in Escrow account (0.94)

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (390.75)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings 246.20
Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) 3.47
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 145.96
Interest paid 2.17
Other borrowing costs paid (6.42)

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 391.38
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 0.11
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 0.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. (Refer Note 1 to 28)

In terms of our report attached of even date

For Dipesh Ruparelia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 152808W CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Dipesh Kirit Ruparelia Pramod Deore Viren Shah
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 190806 DIN: 08599306 DIN: 09588566
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023
UDIN: 23190806BGVUNE8944

Statement of Cash flow for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

A. Share capital

Particulars Equity share capital
Balance as at 29th April, 2022 -
Issue of Shares during the period ended 31 March 2023 1.00
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.00

B. Other Equity

Securities premium Retained earnings Total other equity
Balance as at 29th April, 2022 - - -
Premium on issue of Shares during the period ended March 31, 2023 144.96 - 144.96
Profit/(Loss) for the period ended 31 March 2023 - (0.22) (0.22)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 144.96 (0.22) 144.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. (Refer Note 1 to 28)

In terms of our report attached of even date
For Dipesh Ruparelia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 152808W CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Dipesh Kirit Ruparelia Pramod Deore Viren Shah
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 190806 DIN: 08599306 DIN: 09588566
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023
UDIN: 23190806BGVUNE8944

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

Reserves and surplus



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Note 1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Note 1.2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

Clean Max Rudra Private Limited (herein after referred to as " the Company") incorporated on 29th April 2022 will be earning its revenue
from generation and sale of power.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is 13 A, Floor -13, Plot-
400, The Peregrine Apartment, Kismat Cinema, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400025, Maharashtra, India.

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors an authorised for issue on 04th May,
2023.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:
- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

(c) Revenue recognition

Interest income

(d) Foreign currency

Transactions and balances

(e) Taxation

Current tax

Deferred taxes

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates.These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss for the period in which the transaction is settled.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at that date and resultant gains / losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not restated at period-end and are measured at historical cost
(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates (applicable tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is net off trade discounts, rebates and
other similar allowances. Revenue excludes indirect taxes which are collected on behalf of Government.

Revenue from sale of power:
Revenue from sale of power is recognised when the units of electricity is delivered at the price agreed with the customer in the power purchase
agreement which conincides with the tranfer of control and the Company has a present right to receive the payment.



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

Current and deferred tax for the reporting period

(f) Provisions, contingent liability and contingent asset

(g) Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit is remote. A contingent asset is disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables are measured at the
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement the profit and loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are met:
- financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
- contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortised cost classification or are equity instruments
held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also
fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements may
apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The fair values of
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market
exists.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

Impairment of financial asset

Derecognition of financial asset

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Equity instruments

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Derecoginition of financial liabilities

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments (three months
or less from the date of acquisition) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

The Company assesses expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost based on Company’s past history of recovery,
creditworthiness of the counter party and existing market conditions. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach for recognition of impairment
allowance as provided in Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised on initial recognition of
the receivables.



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

(i) Property, plant and equipment

(j) Impairment of assets

(k) Earnings per share

(l) Use of estimates and judgements

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the reporting period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period as adjusted to the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported balances of assets and liabilities including
disclosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the period presented.
Contingent liability is recorded when it is probable that a liability may be incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including any cost attributable in bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use, net of subsidy (if any) less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent expenditure are capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the entity. All repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Effective interest costs on the borrowings which is utilised for qualifying assets pertaining to the period upto the date of capitalisation is added
to the cost of the assets.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013
except in respect Solar Power Plant where the life is considered as 25 years taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of
the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition / disposal of an asset is included in statement of profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). Non financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment.



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

(m) Critical accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions, that effect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affect only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future period.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

(a) Useful lives of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The
estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.

(c) Taxation
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy has been detailed in Note (e)
above.
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Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Note 3

Deferred tax asset
 As at

31 March 2023

Deferred tax asset (net) 0.05
0.05

Note 4

Other non-current assets
 As at

31st March, 2023
(unsecured, considered good)

Capital advance 68.98
68.98

Note 5

Cash and cash equivalents
 As at

31st March, 2023
Balances with banks
     Current accounts 0.11

0.11

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

Note 6

Other balances with banks
 As at

31st March, 2023
Balances with banks
     Escrow accounts(IDFC Bank) 0.94

0.94

The balance in escrow account has restriction on usage.

Note 7

Other financial assets
 As at

31st March, 2023

Security deposits 0.01
0.01

Note 8

Other current assets
 As at

31st March, 2023
(unsecured, considered good)

Advances to supplier -
Prepaid expenses 0.30
Balance with government authorities 0.07

0.37



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814
Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Note 9
Equity Share capital

Authorised:
3,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3.00

3.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
99,790 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1.00

1.00

Footnotes:

9 (a) Details of rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shareholders:

9 (b)  Reconciliation of equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the period: No. Amount

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period - -
Equity shares issued during the period - fresh issue 99,790 1.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 99,790 1.00

9 (c)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: No. % of holding

Name of the shareholders:
Cleanmax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 73,844 74%
Apar Industries Ltd 25,946 26%

99,790 100%

9 (d) Details of shareholding of promoters No. % of holding % Change in Holding

Name of the promoters:

Cleanmax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 73,844 74.00% 26%

Note 10
Other equity

Security premium

 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Opening balance -
Add: Premium on shares issued during the period - fresh issue 144.96
Closing Balance 144.96

Retained earnings

 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Opening balance -
Loss for the period (0.22)
Closing Balance (0.22)

Total 144.74

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:
10(a) Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve shall be utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

 As at
31st March, 2023

The Company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Members of the Company holding equity share capital therein have a
right to vote, on every resolution placed before the Company and right to receive dividend. The voting rights on a poll is in proportion to the share of the paid-up
equity capital of the Company held by the shareholders. The Company declares dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding.

For the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st
March, 2023

 As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2023

10(b) Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.



Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Notes to the financial statements for the period 29th April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Note 11
Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured
Term loan from others (refer footnote 11(a) to 11(i)) 163.88
Less: Current maturities of term loan (5.22)

158.66
Unsecured
Loan from Related Party (refer footnote 11(j))

Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 78.37
78.37

237.03
Footnote 11
(a) Details of term loan: Loan 1
(i) Outstanding balance as at period end (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 170.00
(ii) Rate of interest L&T Finance

Infrastructure finance
PLR minus Spread

(iii) Terms of repayment of term loan outstanding as at period end Repayable in 74
structured Instalments
payable quarterly
from September 30,
2023 to December 31,
2041

(b) Security for Loan 1

(v) Assignment by way of security interest of PPA as a part of project document;

(vii) Pledge/charge on investments, if any, of the Borrower(s);

(xiii) Charge over the surplus accounts of each of the other borrowers;

11 (h) The loan balance is net of unamortised borrowing cost of - 6.12

11 (i) The loan balance includes EIR impact of - 2.17

(xiv) Assignment by way of security interest over the Government Approvals / consent/ approvals / licenses and contracts (present and future) of the
Common Infrastructure Provider;

(xv) Assignment by way of security interest over the consent/approvals/licenses and contracts in relation to the Common Infrastructure facility to the
extent permitted  under applicable law.

11 (c) The Company has not made any delay in Registration of Charges under the Companies Act, 2013.

 As at
31st March, 2023

(viii) First pari passu charge on all reserves and permitted investments and the bank accounts of the Borrowers including but not limited to Trust and
Retention Account  (TRA)/Designated Account and Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA)

(ix) First pari passu charge on all rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demand in Project Documents (including without limitation the power
purchase agreement,  clearances, insurance contracts, proceeds under the insurance contracts, relating to  the Projects, both present and future;

(x) First pari passu charge on all accounts under the Trust and Retention Account agreement and any other bank accounts of the Project except permitted
accounts (if any), including a charge on all the monies, receivables from the Projects and cash deposited therein;

(xi) Assignment of by way of security interest of unsecured loan/ financial assisstance/ funds infused by the promoter(s) in the borrower along with power
of attorney;

(xii) Pledge of 74% of the issued, paid up and voting equity share capital/ preference share capital and 100% of structured instruments (OCD/ CCD/ NCD/
CRPS) of the borrower. The pledge of equity shares shall be reduced to 51% upon achievement of project stabilization date;

(i) A first Pari passu charge by way of mortgage on all immovable assets (freehold/leasehold) of the Borrower, both present and future;
(ii) Assignment of rights under the Common Infrastructure Agreement;
(iii) First pari passu charge on all the movables of the Borrower, including but not limited to book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions,
insurance proceeds of performance warranty, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, movable machinery, machinery spares, tools,
equipment(s) and accessories, both  present and future;

(iv) First pari passu charge or assignment by way of security interest of all present and future rights, title, interest, benefit, claims and demand whatsoever
of the Borrower in (i) the Project Documents (including the power purchase agreements entered in relation to the Projects) (duly acknowledged and
consented to, by the relevant counter-parties to such Project Documents all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time) along with a power of
attorney in favour of the Security Trustee/Lenders' Agent; (ii) in the clearances relating to the Projects, (iii) in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance
bond or any other instruments provided by any counter party for the Projects/ in favour of the Borrower and in (iv) all insurance proceeds relating to the
Projects;

(vi) First pari-passu charge on intangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future,  of the Borrowers;

11 (d) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

11 (e) (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
          (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

11 (f) In relation to the specific purposes term loans and borrowings as disclosed under Long Term borrowings, the Company has used the funds for the
purposes for which they were taken.

11 (g) The Company is not a wilful defaulter under guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

11 (j) The company has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions where it has been obtained on the basis of security of current assets.
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Note 12
Short-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured
Current maturities of term loan 5.22

Unsecured
Loan from Related Party [ refer footnote 12]

Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 3.47

8.69
Footnote 12:

Note 13
Trade payables
(Due on account of goods purchased and services received)

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises [refer foot note 13] 0.03
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 0.02

0.05
Footnote:

(ii)The Disclosure relating Micro and Small Enterprises is as under:

(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting period                            0.03
(ii) Interest on above                               -
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the principal payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
date during the period

                              -

(iv) Amount of interest due and payable on delayed payments                               -
(v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the earlier years                               -
(vi) Amount of Interest payable on last years interest outstanding                               -
(vii)  Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
                - Principal                            0.03
                - Interest                               -

Note 14

Other current financial liabilities
 As at

31st March, 2023

Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 4.16
4.16

Note 15

Other current liabilities
 As at

31st March, 2023

Statutory obligations 0.16
0.16

 As at
31st March, 2023

 As at
31st March, 2023

Short-term borrowings constitutes unsecured loan from Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd (CMES) which has no repayment schedule and no
interest is payable on the same.

13 (a): Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(i) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.

 As at
31st March, 2023
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Note 16
Other expenses  For the period 29th

April, 2022 to 31st
March, 2023

Rent 0.03
Legal and professional fees 0.14
Rates and Taxes -
Payments to auditor -

- Statutory audit 0.01
Filing and stamp duty charges 0.09
Miscellaneous expenses -

0.27

Note 17

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted

Loss after tax                               (0.22)
Weighted average Number of equity shares                             83,340
Earnings per share                               (2.64)

 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
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Note 18: Financial Instruments

18.1 Capital management

18.2 Categories of financial instruments

18.3 Financial risk management

18.3.1 Credit risk

18.3.2 Market risk

18.3.3 Foreign exchange risk

18.3.4 Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in net assets value
(NAV) of the financial instruments held.
There is no price risk applicable to the Company as it does not hold any investments in other companies.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk notably credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's focus is to ensure liquidity which is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements. The Company monitors and
manages key financial risks so as to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The policies for managing each of these
risks are summarised below:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
Bank balances are held with reputed and creditworthy banking institutions.

Market risk is the risk that the expected cash flows or fair value of a financial instrument could change owing to changes in market prices.
Market risks are primarily composed of foreign exchange risk and price risk. There is no significant risk to the Company on this account.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in exchange
rates. The Company does not have any foreign exchange transactions during the year and also there is no unhedged foreign currency
exposures outstanding as at the reporting date.

All the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are recognised at amortised costs. The Company considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair value.

The Company’s objectives for managing capital comprise safeguarding the business as a going concern, creating value for stakeholders and
supporting the development of the Company.
The capital structure of the Company consist of equity share capital and other equity. The Company also has obtained borrowings which are
secured against the assets owned by the Company and unsecured borrowings from Parent Company.

The management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the management considers risks associated with the
Company that could result in erosion of its total equity.
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18.3.5 Liquidity risk

Particulars  Less than 1
year

 More than 1 year  Total

As at 31 March, 2023

Borrowings                    8.69                     240.98                      249.67
Trade payables                    0.05                             -                          0.05
Other current financial liabilities                    4.16                             -                          4.16

                 12.90                     240.98                      253.88

18.3.6 Interest rate risk
The company is exposed to interest rate risk because company borrows funds at prevailing interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment and realisation
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay and realise.
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Note 19 : Income taxes

19.1 The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023

Profit before tax (0.27)
Enacted income tax rate in India 17.16%
Income tax expense calculated at 17.16% (0.05)
Others -
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (0.05)

Note 19.2

Note 19.3 Deferred taxes

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

Item of deferred tax asset/(liability) Opening Balance (Charge)/Credit in P&L Closing Balance
Deferred tax liabilities                                            -                                       -                                       -

Deferred tax assets:
Unabsorbed depreciation and Carried forward losses                                            -                                   0.05                                   0.05

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)                                            -                                     0.05                                   0.05

Note 20 : Related Party disclosure
(a) Name of the Related Party and Description of relationship

Parent company Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited

Shareholder Apar Industries Ltd

Key Management Personnel Mr. Viren Shah (Director)
Mr. Pramod M.Deore (Director)

(b) Transactions with related parties during the period
Particulars  For the period 29th

April, 2022 to 31st
March, 2023

Cleanmax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares 108.00
Short term borrowings taken during the year 149.56
Short term borrowings repaid during the year 146.09
Long term borrowings taken during the year 76.20
Purchases of property, plant and equipment/CWIP 274.70
Interest expense (capitalised to CWIP) 2.17
Capital advances 382.16
Purchases against capital advances 313.33

Apar Industries Ltd
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares 37.95

The above transactions are exclusive of GST.

(c) Outstanding balances
Particulars

Cleanmax Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited
Long term borrowings 78.37
Short term borrowings 3.47
Capital advances 68.98

 As at
31st March, 2023

The following table provides the details of movment of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

The tax rate used for the period April to March 2023 is at 17.16%. The reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of payable by corporate entities in India on
taxable profits under the Indian tax law.
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Note 21 - Key Ratios
a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars
 As at

31st March, 2023
Current Assets                                   1.43
Current Liabilities                                 13.06

Ratio                                   0.11

Particulars
 As at

31st March, 2023

Total debt                               245.72
Total equity                               145.74

Ratio                                   1.69

Particulars
 As at

31st March, 2023
EBITDA                                  (0.27)
Total interest and principal repayments                                  (2.17)

Ratio                                   0.12

Particulars
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Net profit/(loss) after tax attributable to owners of the Company (0.22)
Average Equity attributable to owners of the Company 145.74

Ratio -

The above ratio is not applicable as there is no turnover.

The above ratio is not applicable as there are no purchases.

b) Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current
borrowings

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal
repayments

d) Return on Equity Ratio / Return on investment Ratio = Net profit/(loss) after tax attributable to owners of the
Company divided by Average Equity attributable to owners of the Company

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Sales divided by average trade receivables

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = purchases divided by average trade payables
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Particulars
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Sales                                       -
Current Assets (A)                                   1.43
Current Liabilities (B)                                 13.06
Net Working Capital (A-B)                               (11.63)
Average Working Capital                               (11.63)

Ratio                                       -

Particulars
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Net Profit after tax                                  (0.22)
Net Sales                                       -

Ratio                                       -

Particulars
 For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023
Net profit after tax(A)                                  (0.22)
Finance Costs (B)                                       -
Total Tax Expense (C)                                  (0.05)
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)+(C)                                  (0.27)

Total equity (E)                               145.74
Total debt (F)                               245.72
Capital Employed (I)=(E )+(F)                               391.46

Ratio (D)/(I)                                       -

The above ratio is not applicable as the Company has no other investments other than current operations

h) Net Working Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by average Working capital whereas net working
capital= current assets - current liabilities

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit/(loss) after tax divided by Net Sales

j) Return on Capital employed =Earnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

k) Return on Investment = Income from investment divided by the closing balance of the investment

Footnote:
The above Non-GAAP measures presented may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other
companies. Further, it should be noted that these are not a measure of operating performance or liquidity defined by
generally accepted accounting principles and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other
companies.
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Note 22 - Trade Payable

Particulars  Not due
 Less than

1 year
 1  - 2
Years

 2-3 Years  > 3 Years  Total

As at 31st March, 2023

 (i) Undisputed Dues - Micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME)             0.01             0.02 - - - 0.03
 (ii) Undisputed Dues - Others                -               0.02 - - - 0.02
 (iii) Disputed dues - Micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME)                - - - - - -
 (iv) Disputed dues - Others                - - - - - -

Total             0.01             0.04                 -                      -                  -              0.05
The above figures are considered from the date of transaction

Note 23
There are no contingent liabilities as at the 31 March 2023.

Note 24

Information about major customers:-
There are no customers from whom the Company has earned more than 10% of its total revenue.

Note 25
Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars

Borrowings at the beginning of the period (current and non-current borrowings)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayments of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowing (net)
Changes due to effective interest rate
Borrowings at the end of the period (current and non-current borrowings)

Note 26
Company is not required to spend amounts on account of CSR as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013

Note 27 : Rule 11 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
a) The Company has not given Loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, that are repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

b) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief operating decision maker ("CODM") of the
Company. The CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. "Sale of Solar Power" which is reviewed by CODM and all the activities incidental thereto are
within India, hence Company does not have any reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments".

For the period 29th
April, 2022 to 31st

March, 2023

                                   -
                            246.20

-
3.47

245.72
                              (3.95)
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Note 28 : Disclosures required under schedule III

For and on behalf of the Board of
Clean Max Rudra Private Limited
CIN:U40100MH2022PTC381814

Pramod Deore Viren Shah
Director Director
DIN: 08599306 DIN: 09588566
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 04th May, 2023 Date: 04th May, 2023

i. The Company has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies.
ii. The Company has not any entered in scheme of arrangement under section 230  to 237 of Companies Act 2013.
iii. The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
iv. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the companies
(Restriction on number of layer) Rules, 2017.




























































